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Independent Auditors’ Report

Board of Education
Yuma School District-1
Yuma, Colerado

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Yuma School District-1 (the District), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statemments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, irmnplementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obfain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
staternents, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the District as of
June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash
flows thercof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note N to the financial statements, in fiscal year 2014, the District adopted new
accounting guidance, GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and
Liahilities. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information listed in the
table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate opetational,
econoinic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures te the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an cpinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opiniens on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The other supplementary
information listed in the table of contents is presented for purpeses of additional analysis and
is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is presented for purposes of additicnal analysis as required by the U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.



The other supplementary information and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are
the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the other supplementary information and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole,

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 4, 2014, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance, That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Laner, Syabe & Hesociates, P. L.

Sterling, Colorado
December 4, 2014



YUMA SCHOOL DISTRICT-1
Management Discussion and Analysis
For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

This section of Yuma School District-1’s annual financial report presents its discussion
and analysis of the District’s financial performance during the year ended June 30,
2014,

Financial Highlights

= The assets of Yuma Scheol District-1 exceeded its liabilities at the close of the
most recent fiscal year by $13,373,299 (net position).

»  The district’s total net position decreased by $344,912.

' General revenues accounted for $7,868,822 or 88% of the $8,974,577 in total
revenues. Program specific revenues in the form of charges for services, sales,
and grants accounted for $1,105,755 or 12% of revenues.

* The general fund ending fund halance reached $6,285,294, a decrease of
$559,231 from last year.

Overview of Financial Statements

The discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the School
District’s basic financial statements. The basic financial statements consist of four
components: 1} government-wide financial statements, 2} fund financial statements,
3) notes to the financial statements and, {4) required supplementary information.
This report also contains supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements.

Government-wide Statements

The Government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with
information about the Schoel District as a whole using accounting methods similar
to those used by private-sector businesses.

The statement of net position includes all of the School District's assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time,
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial pesition of the School District is improving or deteriorating,



The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net
position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to change occurs, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods
fe.g., uncollected taxes). The government-wide financial statements consolidate the
governmental and Business type activities. The business type activities include the
Food Services Fund. In the government-wide financial statements, the School
District’s activities are divided into two categories.

* Governmental activates: Most of the School District's basic services are
included here, such as instruction, transportation, maintenance and
operations, and administration. Taxes and intergovernmental revenues
principally support these activities.

* Business-type activities: The food service program is intended to recover all
or a significant portion of their costs through fees, charges and governmental
reimbursements,

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The fund
financial statements provide more detailed information about the School District’s
operations, focusing on the most significant or “major’ funds, not the School
District as a whole. The School District has three kinds of funds: governmental
funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds

Most of the District’s basic services are included in the governmental funds, which
generally focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be
converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances left at ycar-end that are
available for spending. Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a
detailed short-term view that helps determine the status of financial rescurces that
can be spent in the near future to finance the School District’s program.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-
wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for
governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities
in the government-wide financial statements. Thus, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions., Both the
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and change in fund balances provide reconciliation to the
government-wide financial statements in order to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.



The School District maintains three individual governmental funds. Information is
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the
governmental fund statement of revenue, expenditures and change in fund balances
for the general and bond redemption (which are considered to be major funds) and
the capital reserve capital projects funds, which is considered to be a nonmajor
fund.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 18-21 of
this report,

Proprietary Funds

The School District maintains enterprise funds to report the same functions
presented as business-type activities in its food service fund. Proprietary funds
provide the same type of information as government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail. The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on
pages 22-24 of this report.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to count for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the school district. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide
financial statements because the resources of those funds are not awvailable to
support the School District’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary
funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. The basic fiduciary fund
financial statements can be found on page 25 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of
the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes
te the financial statements may be found on pages 26-45 of this report.

Other information

In addition to the basic financial statements, this report also presents other
supplementary information concerning the School District’s annual appropriated
budgets with comparison statements that demonstrate compliance with budgets.
Budgeted amounts may be found on pages 48-66,

Financial Analysis of the School District as a Whole

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the School
District’s financial position.

58% of the School District’s assets are its investment in capital assets {e.g., land,
buildings and equipment). The school District uses these assets to provide
instruction and related services to its’ students.



The following table provides a summary of the district’s net position (liabilities} as of
June 30, 2013,

Current and other assets
Capital assets

Total assets

Deferred outflows of
resources

Long term liabilities
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net position

Net investment in capital
assets

Restricted

Unrestricted

Total net position

Governmental Activities  Business-type Activities Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

§ 8,342,061 § 8,667,483 3117415 § 64,700 § 8,459,476 § 8,732,183
$12,018,901 $12,409,096 $ 34,824 § 43,898 $12,053725 $12,452,994
$20,360,962 $21,076,579 $152,2390 $108,598 §$20,513201 $21,185,177
§ 246,409 § - $ - % - § 246,409 3 -
$ 6,325,927 $ 6,617,400 $ 7094 $ 7031 § 6333021 3 6624431
$ 1,032014 $ 736,537 § 21276 § 21647 $1,053,280 § 758,184
$ 7,357,941 § 7,353,937 § 28370 § 28678 § 7,386,311 § 73828615
$ 5,939,382 § 5,858,784 $ 34824 $ 43,898 §$ 5974,206 § 5,902,682
$ 1,279,899 $ 1,290,389 3 - % - $ 1279899 § 1,290,389
§ 6,030,149 § 6,573,469 $ 89,045 § 36,022 $ 6,119,194 § 6,609,491
$13,249,430 $13,722 642 $123,869 § 795,020 $13,373,259 §13,802,562

Following is a summary of the School District’s change in net position.

Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for senvices
Cperating Grants
&Contributions
Capital Grants &
Contributions
General Revenue
Property taxes
State equalization
Cther

Transfers

Total Revenue

Expenses
Instruction

Pupil & Instructional

Services
Administration &
Business
Maintenance
&Cperations
Transportation
Cther

Total Expenses

Change in net position

Total Percentage Change

2013-2014
-3.12%
-3.21%

-3.17%

nfa

-4.40%
38.92%

.05%

1.21%
-.81%
-7.42%

-3. 1%

Tota! Percentage Change

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
$ 12,285 $ 10,747 $56,184 §57785 § 68469 % 68532
$ 773,373 $ 615,400 $ 263,913 §$ 273,106 $1,037,286 § 888506
§ - % - § - 3 - % - 3 -
$4,098,847 § 4,546,257 3 - 8 $ 4,098,847 § 4,546,257
$3,545993  § 3,056,808 3 - & - $3,545993 § 3,056,808
§ 223863 § 255655 % 118 % 65 $ 223982 § 255,720
$ (86,836} $ 86,836
$8,567,525 § 8,484,867 $407,052 §$330956 $8,974,577 8,815,823
$5,109,988 §$4,505913 $ - % - $5,109,988 §4,505913
$ 277,952 § 271478 3 - % - % 277952 § 271478
$1,235,796 $1,102,283 3 - % - §1,235796 $1,102,283
$1,080,389 §$ 957,986 $ - 8 - §$1080389 § 957986
$ 425283 § 372,364 3 - 3 - % 425283 § 372,364
$ 826,978 § 887,495 $363,103  $371,728 $1,190,081 $ 1,259,223
$8,956,386 §8,097,519 $363,103 $371,728 $9,319,489 § 8,469,247
§(388,861) $ 387,348 $ 43949 $(40,772) $(344,912) § 346576

2013-2014

-.09%
16.74%

0%
-9.84%
16.00%

-12.41%
-1.80%
13.41%
2.38%
1211%
12.78%
14.21%
-5.49%
10.04%

-199.52%



Governmental Activities

The primary source of operating revenue for school districts comes from the School
Finance Act of 1994, as amended (SFA). Under the SFA the School District received
$7,418 per funded student. In fiscal year 2013-2014 the funded pupil count was
772.2. Funding for the SFA comes from property taxes levied for general purposes,
specific ownership tax and state equalization. The School District receives
approximately 47 percent of this funding from state equalization while the
remaining amount comes from property taxes and specific ownership tax. The
School District’s assessed valuation generated $2,910,539 in property taxes levied
for general purposes for fiscal year 2013-2014.

Business-Type Activities

Business-type activities are made up of the food services fund. The program had
total revenues of $407,052 and expenses of $363,103. Business type activities
receive no support from tax revenue.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the School District’s governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information
is useful in assessing the School district’s financing requirements. In particular,
unrestricted fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the School District’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year,

As the end of the fiscal year, the School District’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $7,318,276, a decrease of $563,274 in
comparison with the prior year. The general fund had a fund balance decrease of
$559,231, the bond redemption fund had a fund balance decrease of $4,698, and
other governmental funds had a fund balance increase of $655.

General Fund Budget Highlights

The District’'s budget is prepared according to Colorado law and is based on
accounting for transactions under generally accepted accounting principles. The
most significant budgeted fund is the General Fund,

* The decrease in earnings on investments ($4,985) was due to the decrease in
interest rates versus projections.

* The foods services section of the fund had an overage ($42,887) due to rising
commodity prices.

e Textbooks, ordered in May for the amount of $141,841 and intended for
delivery in July as well as budget SY 2014-15, were delivered prematurely.
The overage is a “wash” between the two yearly budgets.

¢ The District’s federal sources of revenue from the consolidated grant reached
a nadir in SY 2013-14, while in Title I, IDEA Part B and IDEA preschool
while demand for services for “at-risk” students (partially supported by Title
[} and students with significant IEP’s (partially supported by 1IDEA) both
increased.



Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Capital Assets

The School Districts investment in capital assets for its governmental and business
type activities as of June 30, 2014 amounts to $12,053,725 (net of accumulated
depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, and
improvements, equipment, construction in progress, and capital leases all with an
original cost greater than $5,000 for governmental activities and $1,000 for
business-type activities,

Capital asset additions during the current fiscal year include the following:
* Buildings and improvements - $184,161

The School District’s total capital assets at June 30, 2014 net of accumulated
depreciation were as follows:

Governmental
Activities Business-type Activities Total
Buildings & improvements 11,310,240 - 11,310,240
Transportation equipment 427,298 - 427,298
Cther equipment 281,363 34,824 316,187
Total Capital Assets 12,018,901 34,824 12,063,725

Additicnal information on the School District’s capital assets can be found in note E
on pages 38-39 to the basic financial statements.

Long-Term Debt

At year-end, the School District’s long-term debt of $6,325,927 consisted of the
following,

Governmental
Activities
General obligation bonds payable, net of discount
and premium $ 6,154,213
Capital lease obligations 105,830
Accrued compensated absences 65,884
Total $ 6,325,927




Economic Factors

Some uncertainty clouds the prospects for the School District for the next year,

» Enrcllment rose expectantly in SY 2014-15, mainly due to immigration {up
approx. 15 students from last year). Actuaries at the CDE continue to
forecast an additional decline of 6-10 students in each of the next few years.
The District’s planning will assume this at least through the 2015 October
Count. The situation with the announced federal “amnesty” is watched
closely by the District.

e S5Y 2014/15 Per Pupil Revenue (PPR) rose slightly this year due to changes
in demographics and a slight increase in state contribution.

¢ PPR forecast: The outlook for the near term continues to be more optimistic
than in a decade. Governor Hickenlocper’s proposed budget has a one-year
$200 million boost for Colorado education. The Colorado economy is
gradually improving, likely to drive an increase (from the legislature) in
expected PPR even above the governor’s request. On the downside, costs
related to a rising percentage of “at risk” students entering the district are
forecast. Colorado has no education legisiation in the queue that would
affect this factor the coming fiscal year.

e There will continue to be substantial and {expensive but mainly non-capital)
critical building maintenarnce to support and improve district infrastructure,
including replacement of beoilers in main buildings.

e As with the previous year, the number of unfunded state and federal
mandates for reporting, changes to curriculum, assessment and governance
will again increase sharply. The district is under continuous pressure to add
administrative (non-instructional) staff to support these mandates.

e [T Costs, related both to mandated online assessment and to the ever-
increasing rele of technology in teaching, continue to be a concern. The
alliance that Yuma-1 formed in 2013 with the Colorade Digital BOCES has
been helpful in mitigating costs and increasing local expertise.

¢ Transportation costs, especially those related to students with [EP’s, are
expected to continue increasing.

e Food costs have increased and are anticipated to continue to do so in the
coming year.

The District continues to reduce and reallocate expenditures to an alignment better
suited to mission and current circumstance. The District does not anticipate any large
expenditure for capital outlay, with the exception of infermation technology and
upgrades to HVAC, especially in the middle school and high school, the district’s two
oldest buildings. It is the intention of the Superintendent to keep purchase orders to a
minimum and costs to a very low level both as good practice and as a hedge against
declining enrollment (minor) and uncertainty (major) until the fiscal situation is more
predictable. The Superiniendent and Schocl Board will be working on a transition plan
for the next Superintendent, scheduled to start in July of 2015. Finally, a long term
plan, based on the whole community’s input, is in the works.

-10-



In SY 2013-14, the District maintained a “Performance” (Accredited) rating on the CO
state system, despite an increase in the at-risk student population. The District
continues to institute a top to bottom improvement process. The District continues to
create or expand ties with national and regional organizations with the experience and
expertise to support The District’s goals.

The priority for the short term is (1) compliance with legal mandates, especially special
education and federal title designated students (2} maintaining the integrity of buildings
and grounds and (3) improving the speed, reliability and functionality of the district’s
computer network. Related to priority #3, the expansion of an enterprise-wide data
system is integral to state-mandated school improvement processes as well as increased
fiscal efficiency. Related to #1, Yuma (like most CO districts) will remain vigilant as to
effects related to planning and forecasting,

Contacting the Districts Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide the District’s citizens, taxpayers, parents,
investors and creditors with a general overview of the District’s finances and to
demonstrate the district’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have any
questions about this report or need additional information, contact Yuma School
District-1, 418 South Main Street, Yuma, Colorado 80759,
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Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements of the District include the following:

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide statements display
information about the reporting government as a whole, except for its fiduciary
activities.

Fund financial statements. The fund financial statements display information about
major funds individually and nonmajor funds in the aggregate for governmental and
enterprise funds.

Notes to the financial statements., The notes communicate information essential for fair

presentation of the financial statements that is not displayed on the face of the financial
statements. As such, the notes are an integral part of the hasic financial statements.

-13-



YUMA SCHOOL DISTRICT-1
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2014

Assets
Cash
Cash with fiscal agent
Certificates of deposit
Internal activity
Receivables
Inventory
Capital assets, net of depreciation

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred charges on refundings
of bonds

Total assets and delerred
outflows of resources

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Accrued interest payable
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Emergencies
Preschool
Debt service
Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities and net position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Governmental  Business-type
Activities Activities Total
3 5,959,954 $ 85,335 $ 6,045,289
1,014,487 1,014,487
1,133,779 1,133,779
(17,524) 17,524 -
251,365 251,365
14,5556 14,556
12,018,901 34,824 12,053,725
20,360,962 152,239 20,513,201
246,409 246,409
$ 20,607,371 B 152,239 $ 20,759,610
$ 201,668 $ 201,668
755,327 $ 21,276 776,603
75,019 75,019
586,852 586,852
5,739,075 7,094 5,746,169
7,357,941 28,370 7,386,311
6,005,267 34,824 6,040,091
231,000 231,000
16,712 16,712
1,032,187 1,032,187
5,964,264 89,045 6,053,309
13,249,430 123,869 13,373,299
$ 20,607,371 5 152,239 % 20,759,610




This page intentionally left blanl.

~15-



YUMA SCHOOL DISTRICT-1
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions
Governmental activities
Instruction $ 5,109,988 & 12,285 $ 647,546
Supporting services
Students 117,069 21,000
Instructional staff 160,883 10,697
General administration 333,961
School administration 791,819
Business services 110,016
Operations and maintenance 1,080,389
Student transportation 425,283 88,166
Central support services 141,681 5,924
Other support services 24,909
Non-instructional services 539
Food service operations 516
Community services 40 40
Facilities acquisition 17,263
Unallocated depreciation * 421,434
Interest and fiscal charges 220,596
Total governmental aclivities 8,956,386 12,285 773,373 H -
Business-type activities
Nutrition services 363,103 56,184 263,913
Total school district $ 9,319,489 5 68,469 $ 1,037,286 3 -

* This amount e¢xcludes depreciation that is

included in the direct expenses of the various

programs,

General revenues and transfers

Taxes

Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Property taxes, levied for debt service
Specific ownership taxes

Delinquent taxes and interest

State categorical aid
Earnings on investments

Other
Transfers

Total general revermes and transfers

Change in net position

Net position at beginning of year, as restated

Net position at end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Net (Expenses) Revenues and
Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
$ (4,450,157) $ (4,450,157)
(96,069) (96,069)
{150,186)
(333,961) {333,961)
(791,819) (791,819)
{110,016) (110,016)
(1,080,389) (1,080,389)
(337,117) (337,117)
(135,757) (135,757)
(24,909) (24,909)
(539) (539)
(516) (510)
(17,263) (17,263)
{421,434) {421,434
{220,596) {220,590)
(8,170,728) % - (8,020,542)
(43,006) (43,006)
(8,170,728) (43,006) (8,213,734)
2,910,539 2,910,539
708,267 708,267
472,521 472,521
7,520 7,320
3,545,993 3,545,993
20,124 119 20,243
203,739 203,739
(86,836) 86,836 -
7,781,807 86,955 7,868,822
(388,861) 43,949 (344,912)
13,638,291 79,920 13,718,211
$ 13,249,430 $ 123,869 $ 13,373,299
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YUMA SCHOOL DISTRICT-1
Balance Sheet

Govcernmental Funds

June 30, 2014

Assets
Cash
Cash with fiscal agent
Certificates of deposit
Due from other funds
Property taxes receivable
Grants receivable
Other receivables

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Accrued salaries and benefits

Total liabilities

Delerred inflows of resources
Deferred property tax revenues

Total deferred inflows of
resources

Fund balance
Restricted for emergencies
Restricted for preschool
Restricted for debt service
Committed for capital purposes
Unassigned

Total fund balance
Total liabilities, deferred

inflows of resources and
fund balance

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Bond Other Total
General Redemption Governmental Governmental

FFund Fund Fund Funds
$ 5,959,159 $ 7935 $ 5,959,954
5,245 $ 1,009,242 1,014,487
1,133,779 1,133,779
4,140 4,140
148,039 35,996 184,035
67,180 67,180
150 150
$ 7,313,552 $ 1,045,238 $ 4,935 $ 8,363,725
¥ 197,528 3 4,140 P 201,668
21,664 21,664
755,327 755,327
974,519 5 - 4,140 978,659
53,739 13,051 66,790
53,739 13,051 - 66,790
231,000 231,000
16,712 16,712
1,032,187 1,032,187
795 795
6,037,582 6,037,582
6,285,294 1,032,187 795 7,318,276
$ 7,313,552 $ 1,045,238 $ 4,935 $ 8,363,725
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YUMA SCHOOL DISTRICT-1
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2014

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position are different because:

Total fund balance - governmental funds $ 7,318,276

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported as assets in governmental funds. 12,018,901

Deferred outflows of resources are not financial resources and therefore
are not reported as assets in the governmental funds. 246,409

Property taxes receivable will be collected this year, but are not
available soon encugh to pay for the current period's expenditures,
and therefore are deferred in the funds. 66,790

Accrued interest on long-term debt is not due and payable in the
current period and therefore is not reported as a liability in the funds. (75,019)

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, net of discounts, premiums and
deferrals, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not

reported as liabilities in the funds. (6,325,927)
Net position of the governmental activities $ 13,249,430

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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YUMA SCHOOL DISTRICT-1
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Revenues
Local sources
Intermedijate sources
State sources
Federal sources

Total revenues

Expenditures
Instruction
Supporting services
Capital outlay
Debt service
Principal retirement
Interest and {iscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing scurces (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other [inancing sources

(uses)

Excess of revenues and other

sources over (under)

expenditures and other (uses}

Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Bond Other Total
General Redemption Governmental  Governmental

Fund Fund Funds Funds
$ 3,609,109 ¥ 704,771 3 18 $ 4,313,898
2,757 2,757
4,020,655 4,020,655
298,711 208,711
7,931,232 704,771 18 8,636,021
5,082,188 5,082,188
2,959,757 2,959,757
304,854 304,854
510,000 49,810 559,810
199,469 6,381 205,850
8,041,945 709,469 361,045 9,112,459
(110,713} (4,698) (361,027) (476,438)
361,682 361,682
(448,518) (448,518)
(448,518) - 361,682 (86,836)
(559,231) (4,698) 655 (563,274)
6,844,525 1,036,885 140 7,881,550
$ 6,285,294 $ 1,032,187 b 795 ¥ 7,318,276
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YUMA SCHOOL DISTRICT-1

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - governmental funds $ (563,274)

Capital outlays to purchase or build capital assets are reported in the
governmental funds as expenditures. However, for governmental
activities, those costs are shown in the statement of net position and
allocated over their estimated useful lives as annual depreciation
expense in the statement of activities. This is the amount by which
depreciation and amortization exceeded capital outlays in the current period. (413,328)

Because some property taxes will not be collected for several months
after the fiscal year ends, they are not considered as "available”
revenues in the governmental funds and are, instead, counted as
deferred tax revenues. They are, however, recorded as revenues in
the statement of activities. 18,340

In the statement of activities, certain expenses are measured by the
amounts incurred during the yvear. In the governmental funds,
however, expenditures for this item are measured by the amount
of financial resources used (essentially, the amounts actually paid). 9,591

Repayment of principal on long-term debt is an expenditure
in the governmental Tunds, but the repayment reduces the long-term
debt liability in the statement of net position. 559,810

Change in net position of governmental activities $ (388,861)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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YUMA SCHOOL DISTRICT-1
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2014

Business-type

Activities
Nonmajor
Proprietary
Fund
Assets
Current assets
Cash $ 85,335
Due from other funds 17,524
Inventory 14,556
Total current assets 117,415
Machinery and equipment 87,487
Less accumulated depreciation (52,663)
Total machinery and equipment, net 34,824
Total assets $ 152,239
Liabilities and net position
Current liabilities
Accrued salaries and benefits $ 21,276
Long-term liabilities
Accrued compensated absences 7,094
Total liabilities 28,370
Net position
Net investment in capital assets 34,824
Unrestricted 89,045
Total net position 123,869
Total liabilities and net position 3 152,239

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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YUMA SCHOOL DISTRICT-1

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Operating revenues
Charges for services

Operating expenses
Salaries and benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials
Property
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating loss

Nonoperating revenues
Federal and state aid
Earnings on investments

Total nonoperating revenues
Loss before transfers
Transfers in
Change in net position

Net position at beginning of year

Net position at end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Business-type
Activities

Nonmajor

Proprietary
Fund

$ 56,184

175,389
9,773
168,064
803
9,074
363,103
(306,919)
263,913
119
264,032
(42,887)
86,836
43,949

79,920

¥ 123,869



YUMA SCHOOL DISTRICT-1
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Cash flows from operating activitics
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees

Net cash used by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Federal and state aid
Transfers in

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Earnings on investments

Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increase in cash
Cash at beginning of year

Cash at end of year

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used by operating activities
Gperating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used by
operating activities
Depreciation
Commodities
Changes in assets and liabilities
Other receivables
Inventory
Accrued salaries and benefits
Accrued compensated absences

Net cash used by operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these [inancial statements.
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Business-type
Activities

Nonmajor
Proprietary
Fund

$ 56,352
(165,648)

(175,697)

(284,993)
271,737
86,836

358,573

119
73,699

11,636

=

85,335

=

(306,919)

9,074
15,770

168

(2,778)

(371)
63

8 (284,993)



YUMA SCHOOL DISTRICT-1
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds

June 30, 2014

Agency
Fund
Assets
Cash $ 129,470
Certificates of deposit 12,605
Total assets P 142,075
Liahilities
Due to student groups $ 142,075

Total liabilities 3 142,075

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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YUMA SCHOOL DISTRICT-1
Notes to Financial Statements

Note A — Summary of significant accounting policies

This summary of the Yuma School District-1’s significant accounting policies is presented
to assist the reader in interpreting the financial statements and other data in this report.
The pelicies are considered essential and should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying financial statements.

The financial statements of the District have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to local government
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial principles. The more
significant of the District’s accounting policies are described below.

A.1 - Reporting entity

The Yuma School District-1 is a school district governed by an elected five-member board of
education. The financial reporting entity consists of (1) the primary government, (2]
organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable, and (3) other
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary
government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements
to be misleading or incomplete. The reporting entity’s financial statements should present
the funds of the primary government (including its blended component units, which are, in
substance, part of the primary government) and provide an overview of the discretely
presented component units.

The District has examined other entities that could be included as defined in number 2 and
3 above. Based on these criteria, the District has no component units.

A.2 - Fund accounting

The District uses funds to report its financial position and resulis of operations. Fund
accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management
by segregating transactions related to certain government functions or activities. A fund is
a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts.

Funds are classified into three categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. Each
category, in turn, is divided into separate “fund types.”

Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of a government’s general activities,
including the collection and disbursement of earmarked funds (special revenue funds), and
the servicing of general long-term debt {debt service fund). The following are the District’s
major governmental funds:
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YUMA SCHQOOL DISTRICT-1
Notes to Financial Statements

Note A — Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

General Fund — The General Fund is the operating fund of the District. It is used to
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another
fund. Major revenue sources include local property taxes, specific ownership taxes, and
State of Colorado equalization funding, as determined by the School Finance Act of 1994,
as amended.

Expenditures include all costs associated with the daily operation of the schools, except for
certain capital outlay expenditures, risk-related transactions, debt service, food service
operations and pupil activities.

Bond Redemption Fund — This fund is a debt service fund used to account for the revenues
from a specific tax levy for the purpose of the repayment of debt principal, interest and
other fiscal charges,

The following is the District’s nonmajor governmental fund:

Capital Reserve Capital Projects Fund - This fund is a capital projects fund used to account
for and report financial resources that have been designated for capital outlays acquisition
or construction of major capital facilities and other capital assets.

Proprietary funds focus on the determination of the changes in net position, financial
position and cash flows and are classified as either enterprise or internal service.
Enterprise funds may be used to account for any activity for which a fee is charged to
external users for goods or services. The following is the District’s nonmajor proprietary
fund:

Food Service Fund - This fund is an enterprise fund used to account for the financial
activities associated with the District’s food service operations.

Fiduciary Funds focus on net position and changes in net position. The fiduciary fund
category is split into four classifications: pension trust funds, investment trust funds,
private-purpose trust funds and agency funds. Trust funds are used to account for assets
held by the District under a trust agreement for individuals, private organizations or other
governments and are therefore not available to support the District’s own programs.

Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve the
measurement of results of operations. The District has the following fiduciary fund:

Pupil Activity Agency Ffund - This fund is an agency fund used to record transactions
related to school-sponsored pupil organizations and activities.
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YUMA SCHOOL DISTRICT-1
Notes to Financial Statements

Note A - Summary of significant accounting poelicies (Continued)

Note A.3 - Basis of presentation

Government-wide financial statements — The statement of net position and the statement of
activities display information about the District as a whole. These statements include the
financial activities of the primary government except for fiduciary funds. The statements
distinguish between those activities of the District that are governmental and those that are
considered business-type activities.

The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. This is the same approach used in the
preparation of the proprietary fund financial statements but differs from the manner in
which governmental fund financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial
statements therefore include reconciliations with a brief explanation to better identify the
relationship between the government-wide statements and the statements for governmental
funds.

The government-wide statement of activities presents a comparison between direct
expenses and program revenues for each segment of the business-type activities of the
District and for each function or program of the District’s governmental activities. Direct
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program or department
and therefore are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include
charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered by the program and grants
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular program. Revenues, which are not classified as program revenues, are presented
as general revenues of the District, with certain limited exceptions. The comparison of
direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each business
segment or governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of
the District.

Fund financial statements — Fund financial statements report detailed information about
the District. The focus of governmental and enterprise fund financial statements is on
major funds rather than reporting funds by type. Each major fund is presented in a
separate column. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and presented in a single column.
Fiduciary funds are reported by fund type.

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. All governmental fund types are accounted for using a flow of current
financial resources management focus. The financial statements for governmental funds
are a balance sheet, which generally includes only current assets and current liabilities,
and a statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance, which reports the
sources (revenues and other financing sources) and uses {expenditures and other financing
uses) of current financial resources.
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YUMA SCHOOL DISTRICT-1
Notes to Financial Statements

Note A — Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

All proprietary fund types are accounted for on a flow of economic rescurces measuremernt
focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the
operations of these funds are included on the statement of net position. The staterment of
revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position presents increases (revenues) and
decreases (expenses) in net total position. The statement of cash flows provides
information about how the District finances and meets the cash flow needs of its
proprietary activities.

Fiduciary funds focus on net position and changes in net position and are reported using
accounting principles similar to proprietary funds. The District’s fiduciary funds are
presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements by type. Since by definition these
assets are being held for the benefit of a third party and cannot be used to address the
activities or obligations of the District, these funds are not incorporated into the
government-wide financial statements.

A.4 - Basis of accounting

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and
reported on the financial statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared
using the accrual basis of accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis
of accounting. Proprietary and fiduciary funds also use the accrual basis of accounting,

Revenues — exchange and non-exchange transactions — Revenues resulting from exchange
transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, are recorded
on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrual bhasis,
revenues are recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become
available. Available means that the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year
or are expected to be collected scon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
current fiscal year. For the District, available means expected to be received within sixty
days of fiscal year-end.

Nonexchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal
value in return, include property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. Cn an accrual
basis, revenues from property taxes are recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are
levied. State equalization monies are recognized as revenues during the period in which
they are appropriated. Revenues from grants, entitlernents and donations are recognized in
the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility
requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are
required to be used or the fiscal year when use is first permitted, matching requirements,
in which the District must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpese, and
expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the District on a
reimbursement basis, On a medified accrual basis, revenue f{rom nonexchange
transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.
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YUMA SCHOOL DISTRICT-1
Notes to Financial Statements

Note A - Summary of significant accounting policies {Continued)

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both
measurable and available at fiscal year-end: property taxes collected within sixty days after
year-end, interest, tuition, grants and student fees.

Unearned revenue — Unearned revenues arise when potential revenue does not meet both
the “measurable” and “available” criteria for recognition in the current period. Unearned
revenues also arise when resources are received by the District before it has a legal claim to
them, as when grant monies are received prior to meeting eligibility requirements. In
subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the District
has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned revenue is removed and the
revenue is recognized.

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources - In addition to assets, the statement of financial
position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This
separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The government has one item
that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, deferred charges on
refunding of bonds, is reported on the statement of net position.

In addition to liahbilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a
future peried(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources {revenue) until that
time. The government has only one type of item that qualifies for reporting in this category.
Accordingly, the item, deferred property tax revenues, is reported on the governmental
funds balance sheet. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources
in the period for which they are levied and that the amounts become available,

Expenses/expenditures — On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at
the time they are incurred. The fair value of donated commodities used during the year is
reported in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position as an
expense with a like amount reported as revenue.

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial
resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in
the accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable.
Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in the
governmental funds.
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YUMA SCHOOL DISTRICT-1
Notes to Financial Statements

Note A — Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
A.5 - Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is utilized by the District to record purchase orders, contracts
and other commitments for the expenditure of monies to assure effective budgetary control
and accountability. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are canceled and
reappropriated in the ensuing year’s budget.

A.6 - Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District considers all highly liquid debt
instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

A.7 - Short-term interfund receivables/payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for
goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as
internal balances on the government-wide statement of net position, and are classified as
due from other funds or due to other funds on the balance sheet.

A.8 - Inventories

Food Service Fund — purchased inventories are stated at cost as determined by the first-in,
first-out method. Commodity inventories are stated at the United States Department of
Agriculture’s assigned wvalues, which approximate fair value, at the date of receipt.
Expenses for food items are recorded when consumed. The federal government donates
surplus commodities to the national school lunch program. Commodity distributions used
by the District are recorded as nonoperating revenues at the date of their consumption,

A.,9 — Capital assets

General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the
proprietary funds. These assets generally result from expenditures in the governmental
funds. These assets are reported in the governmental activities colurnn of the government-
wide statement of net position, but are not reported in the fund financial statements.
Capital assets utilized by the proprietary funds are reported both in the business-type
activities column of the government-wide statement of net position and in the respective
fund financial statements.

-31-



YUMA SCHOOL DISTRICT-1
Notes to Financial Statements

Note A — Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

All capital assets with a unit cost greater than $5,000 for the governmental activities and
$1,000 for the business-type activities and proprietary funds are capitalized at cost {or
estimated historical cost, if actual cost is not available) and updated for additions and
retirements during the year. Donated capital assets are recorded at their fair value on the
date received. Infrastructure assets, consisting of certain improvements other than
buildings (such as parking facilities, sidewalks, landscaping and lighting systems) are
capitalized along with other capital assets. Improvements to assets are capitalized; the cost
of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend the life of the asset are not.

All reported capital assets are depreciated with the exception of land costs. Improvements
are depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Governmental Business-type

Description Activities Activities
Buildings and improvements 10-40 years n/a
Transportation equipment 5-15 years nj/a
Other equipment 5-10 years 5-10 years

A.10 - Compensated absences

The District reports compensated absences in accordance with the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 16, “Accounting for Compensated Absences.” Compensated absence benefits
are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned if the employees’ rights to receive
compensation are attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the
District will compensate the employees for the benefits through paid time off or some other
means. Accumulated sick leave benefits are paid to employees upon termination of
employment.

Full-time, twelve-month classified personnel receive vacation leave of between five and
fifteen days per year, depending on the number of complete years of service with the
District. Vacation leave is not a vested benefit, therefore no provision is inclhuded in the
financial statements,

Professional and administrative staff receive sick leave of between seven and eight and one-
half days per year, depending on their classification, and will be paid for up to twenty days
at the current one-day substitute’s rate (currently $75 per day). Support staff receive sick
leave of between seven and eight and one-half days per year, depending on their
classification, and will be paid for up to twenty days at the employees’ per diem or at a rate
not to exceed $62.50 per day, whichever is less,

The entire compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial
statements.
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YUMA SCHOOL DISTRICT-1
Notes to Financial Statements

Note A - Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

For governmental fund financial statements, the current portion of unpaid compensated
absences is the amount expected to be paid using expendable available resources. These
amounts, if any, are recorded in the account “accrued compensated absences” in the fund
from which the employees who have accumulated unpaid leave are paid. The noncurrent
portion of the liability is not reported. In proprietary funds, the entire amount of the
compensated absences is reported as a fund liability.

The amount recorded as liabilities for all applicable compensated absences include salary-
related payments associated with the payment of compensated absences, using the rates in
effect at the balarnce sheet date.

A.11 - Accrued liabilities and long-term obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported in the government-
wide financial statements, and all payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations
payable from proprietary funds are reported on the proprietary fund financial staterments.

In general, payables and accrued liabilities that will be paid from governmental funds are
reported on the governmental fund financial statements regardless of whether they will be
liguidated with current resources. However, the noncurrent portion of compensated
absences that will be paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund
financial statements only to the extent that they will be pald with current expendable,
available financial resources. Bonds payable and other long-term obligations that will be
pald from governmental funds are not recognized as a liability in the fund financial
statements until due. Bond premiums and discounts, and amounts deferred upon
refunding are amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of
debt is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are
reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as
other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

A.12 - Fund balance

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB) has issued Statement No. 54, Fund
Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. This Statement defines the
different types of fund balances that a governinental entity must use for financial reporting
purposes.

GASB 54 requires the fund balance amounts to be properly reported within one of the fund
balance categories listed below.
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YUMA SCHOOL DISTRICT-1
Notes to Financial Statements

Note A — Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Nonspendable, such as fund balance associated with inventories, prepaid expenditures,
long-term loans and notes receivable, and property held for resale (unless the proceeds
are restricted, committed or assigned),

Restricted [und balance category includes amounts that can be spent only for the
specific purposes stipulated by constitution, external resource providers, or through
enabling legislation.

Committed Tund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the
specific purposes determined by a formal action of the board of education (the District’s
highest level of decision-making authority),

Assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the government for
specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or
committed, and

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the District’s general fund
and includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications.

Committed fund balance is established by a formal passage of a resolution. This is
typically done through the adoption and amendment of the budget. A fund balance
commitment is further indicated in the budget document as a designation or commitment
of the fund. Assigned fund balance is established by the board of education through
adoption or amendment of the budget as intended for specific purpose (such as purchase of
fixed assets, construction, debt service or for other purposes).

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available in governmental funds, the
District applies expenditures against restricted fund balance first, and followed by
committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and unassigned fund balarice.

A.13 — Net position

Net position represents the difference befween assets and liabilities. Net investment in
capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the
outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets. DNet position is reported as restricted when there are
liabilities imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the
District or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or
regulations of other governments, The District applies restricted resources when an
expense is incurred for purposes for which hoth restricted and unrestricted net position is
available,
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YUMA SCHOOL DISTRICT-1
Notes to Financial Statements

A,14 - Operating revenues and expenses (Continued)

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity
of the proprietary funds. For the District, these revenues are sales for food service.
Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the goods or services that are
the primary activity of the fund. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

A.15 - Interfund transactions

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses.
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially
made from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as
expenditures/expenses in  the reimbursing fund and as reductions of
expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. All other interfund transactions,
except quasi-external transactions and reimbursements, are reported as transfers. In
general, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements.

A.16 - Extraordinary and special items

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are both unusual in nature and
infrequent in occurrence. Special items are transactions or events that are within the
control of the board of education and that are either unusual in nature or infrequent in

occurrence. Neither type of transaction occurred during the year.

Note B — Cash and investments

Cash and deposits

Colorado State statutes govern the District’s deposit of cash. The Public Deposit Protection
Acts (PDPA) for banks and savings and loans require state regulators to certify eligible
depositories for public deposits. The PDPA require eligible depositories with public deposits
in excess of federal insurance levels to create a single institution collateral pool of defined
eligible assets. Eligible collateral includes obligations of the United States, obligations of
the State of Colorado or Colorade local governments and obligations secured by first lien
mortgages on real property located in the state. The pool is to be maintained by another
institution or held in trust for all uninsured public deposits as a group and not held in any
individual government’s name. The fair value of the assets in the pool must be at least
equal to 102% of the aggregate uninsured deposits.

Custodial credit risl — Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure,
the District’s deposits may not be returned to it. The District does not have a deposit policy
for custodial credit risk. As of year-end, the District had total deposits of $7,378,115, of
which $359,628 was insured and $7,018,487 was collateralized with securities held by the
pledging institution’s trust department or agent in the District’s name.
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Note B — Cash and investments (Continued)

Investments

Authorized investments — Investment policies are governed by Colorado State Statutes and
the District’s own investment policies and procedures. Investments of the District may
include:

=  Obligations of the U, S. Government such as treasury bills, notes and bonds

a  Certain international agency securities

» General obligation and revenue bonds of United States local government entities
= Bankers acceptances of certain banks

*  Commercial paper

»  Local government investment pools

=  Written repurchase agreements collateralized by certain authorized securities

v Certain money market funds

=  Guaranteed investment contracts

At year-end, the District only held investments in certificates of deposit which are
maintained in the General Fund and Pupil Activity Fund.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and investments:

Cash in bank $ 6,174,199
Cash on hand 560
Certificates of deposit 1,146,384
Total $ 7,321,143
Statement of net position
Cash $ 6,045,289
Certificates of deposit 1,133,779
Subtotal 7,179,068
Statement of fiduciary net position
Cash 129,470
Certificates of deposit 12,605
Subtotal 142,075

Total $ 7,321,143
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Note C — Interfund transactions

The following is a summary of interfund borrowings and transfers for the year as presented
in the fund financial statemernts:

Interfund Interfund
Receivables Pavables
Governmental funds
General fund $ - % 21,664
Other governmental funds 4,140 -
Subtotal 4,140 21,664
Proprictary funds
Nonmajor proprietary fund 17,524 -
Total $ 21,664 % 21,664

All balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund reimbursable
expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3)
payments between funds are made.

Transfers Transfers
In Cut
Governmental Funds
Other governmental funds $ 361,682 % -
General fund 448,518
Subtotal 361,682 448,518
Proprietary funds
Nonmajor preprictary funds 86,836 -
Total 5 448 518 % 448,518

Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to
collect them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them. The District
transferred funds from the General Fund to the Capital Reserve Capital Projects Fund to
set moneys aside for future capital outlays acquisition or construction of major capital
facilities and other capital assets. The District also transferred funds in the amount of
$86,836 from the General Fund to the Food Service Fund to subsidize the costs of
maintaining the District’s food service operations.
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Note D — Receivables

Receivables at year-end consist of the fellowing:

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Receivables
Property taxes receivable $ 184,035 $ - % 184,035
Grants receivable 67,180 - 67,180
Other receivables 150 - 150
Total 5 251,365 3 - 8 251,365

Property taxes are levied on December 15th and attach as a lien on property the following
January 1st. They are payable in full by April 30th or are due in two equal installments on
February 28th and June 15th. Yuma County bills and collects property taxes for all taxing
entities within the County. The tax receipts collected by the county are remitted to the

District in the subsequent month.

Note E — Capital assets

Capital asset activity for the year was as follows:

Beginning Detetions/ Ending
Balance Additions Adjustments Balance
Governmental activities
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements $ 19,806,477 3 184,161 § - $ 19,990,638
Transportation equipment 1,472,396 - - 1,472,396
Other equipment 756,906 - - 756,906
Total capital assets 22,035,779 184,161 - 22,219,940
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (8,246,954) (433,444) - (8,680,398)
Transportation equipment (983,113) (61,985) - (1,045,098)
Other equipment (396,616} (78,927 - (475,543}
Total accumulated
depreciation {9,626,683) (574,356] - (10,201,039]
Governmental activities
capital assets, net $12,400,096 $ (390,195 § - 8 12,018,901
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Note E — Capital assets (Continued)

Beginning Deletions/ Ending
Balance Additions Adjustments Balance
Business-type activities
Furniture and equipment & 87,486 % - - % 87,486
Less accumulated depreciation [43,588) (9,074] - [52,662)
Total business-type
activities $ 43,898 § 9,074 § - $ 34.824
Depreciation expense was charged to programs of the District as follows:
Governmental activities
Unallocated $ 421,434
Instruction 29,003
Operations and maintenance 27,186
Student transportation 60,529
Central support services 35,688
Food service 516
Sub-total 574,356

Business-type activities
Total

Note F — Accrued salaries and benefits

Salaries and benefits of certain contractually employed personnel are paid over a twelve-
month period from September to August, but are earned during a school year of
approximately nine to ten months, The salaries and benefits earned but not paid at year-
end are estimated to be $776,603. Accordingly, this accrued compensation is reflected as a

9,074

$ 583,430

liability in the accompanying financial statements.
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Note G — Long-term debt

The following is a summary of the changes in long-term debt for the year:

Beginning Additions/ Ending Due within
Balances Adjustments Reductions Balances one year
Governmental
Activities
Compensated
absences $ 67,088 % - % (1,204) §$ 65,884 $ -
Capital lease
obligations 155,640 - (49,810} 105,830 51,852
Bonds payable 6,620,000 - (510,000} 6,110,000 535,000
Bond discount (25,566) - 2,239 {23,327) -
Bond premium 81,277 - [13,737) 67,540 -
Total $ 6,898,439 $ - (572,512) & 6£.325927 3 586,852

Payments on the capital lease obligation are made in the Capital Reserve Capital Projects
Fund, while the compensated absences attributable to the governmental activities will be
liquidated primarily by the General Fund. The District believes that the current portion of
compensated absences is negligible and is therefore not reported. Bond payments will be
made in the Bond Redemption Fund.

Capital lease obligation

Energy management system — In August 2005, the District entered into an agreement with
Wells Fargo Brokerage Services, LLC to finance the purchase of certain energy saving
equipment from EMC Engineers, Inc. The agreement called for a lease term of one year
with annual renewal options. Annual payments of $56,191 are due on August 150 of each
year, with a final payment due in 2015. The average interest rate over the lease term is
4.100%. The District has capitalized $453,501 of assets under this capital lease.

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum lease payments under the capital
lease above, together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments at year-

end:
Debt service
Year ended June 30, requirement
2015 $ 56,191
2016 56,191
Total minitmum lease payments 112,382
Less amount representing interest (6,552

Present value of future net minimum lease payments $  105.830
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Note G — Long-term debt (Continued)

Bonds payable
General obligation bonds payable consist of the following individual issues:

$9,125,000 general obligation bonds dated December
10, 2003. The District issued $4,200,000 in general
obligation refunding bonds (see on following page] on
December 1, 2006, to advance refund bonds maturing
on and after August 15, 2019.

$4,200,000 general obligation refunding bonds, dated
December 1, 2006, due in annual installments ranging
from $55,000 to $720,000; varying interest rates
ranging from 3.875% to 4.500%, payable semi-
annually on February 15t and August 15th, $ 3,470,000

$2,700,000 general obligation refunding bonds, dated
June 6, 2012, due in annual installments ranging
from $25,000 to $550,000; with a fixed interest rate of
2.00%, payable semi-annually on February 15t and
August 15th, 2,640,000

Total general obligation bonds $ 6,110,000

The following schedule represents the District’s debt service requirements to maturity for
all outstanding bonded indebtedness:

Year ended June 30, Principal Interest Total

2014 $ 535,000 $ 184,325 $ 719,325
2015 540,000 173,075 713,075
2016 550,000 161,691 711,691
2017 570,000 149,975 719,975
2018 580,000 137,913 717,913
2019-2024 3,335,000 342,717 3,677,717

Totals & 6,110,000 $ 1,149,696 $ 7.9259.696

Prioxr year defeasance of debt

In prior years, the District defeased certain general obligation bonds by placing the
proceeds of new bhonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service
payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the
defeased bonds are not included in the District’s financial statements. At year-end,
$5,825,000 of bonds outstanding are considered defeased.
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Note G - Long-term debt (Continued)

Beginning Ending Dhe within
Balances Additions Reductions Balances one vear
Business-type
Activities
Compensated
absences $ 7.031 3 63 % - 8 7.094 § -

Note H — Defined benefit pension plan

Plan description

The District contributes to the Combined State and School District Trust Fund (CSSDTF), a
cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Public
Employees’ Retirement Association of Colorado (PERA). The CSSDTF provides retirement
and disability, annual increases, and death benefits for members or their beneficiaries. All
employees of the District are members of the CSSDTF, Title 24, Article 51 of the Colorado
Revised Statutes (CRS), as amended, assigns the authority to establish benefit provisions to
the State lLegislature. PERA issues a publicly available annual financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the CSSDTF.
That report may be obtained by writing to Colorado PERA, 1300 Logan Street, Denver,
Colorado 80203 or by calling PERA at 303-832-9550 or 1-800-759-PERA (7372).

Funding policy

Plan members and the District are required to contribute to the CSSDTF at a rate set by
statute, The contribution requirements of plan members and the District are established
under Title 24, Article 51, Part 4 of the CRS, as amended. The contribution rate for
members is 8.0% and for the District 16.55% of covered salary between July 1 and
December 31, 2013 and 17.45% of covered salary between January 1 and June 30, 2014.
Also, a portion of the District’s contribution (1.02% of covered salary)} is allocated for the
Health Care Trust Fund (see below). The District’s contributions to the CSSDTF for the
years ended June 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012 were $769,274, $686,921, and $579,945,
respectively, equal to their required contributions for each year.
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Note I - Postemployment healthcare benefits

Plan description

The District contributes to the Health Care Trust Fund (HCTF), a cost-sharing multiple
employer postemployment healthcare plan administered by PERA. The HCTF provides a
health care premium subsidy to PERA participating benefit recipients and their eligible
beneficiaries. Title 24, Article 51, Part 12 of the CRS, as amended, assigns the authority to
establish the HCTF benefit provisions to the State Legislature. PERA issues a publicly
available annual financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary infermation for the HCTF. That report may be obtained by writing to PERA
of Colorado, 1300 Logan Street, Denver, Colorade 80203 or by calling PERA at 303-832-
9550 or 1-800-759-PERA (7372).

Funding policy

The District is required to contribute at a rate of 1.02% of covered salary for all PERA
members as set by statute. No member contributions are required. The contribution
requirements for the District are established under Title 24, Article 51, Part 4 of the CRS,
as amended. The apportionment of the contribution to the HCTF is established under Title
24, Article 51, Section 208 of the CRS, as amended. The District’s contribution to the
HCTF for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012 were $46,138, $43,495, and
$38,907, respectively, equal to their required contributions for each year.

Note J — Defined contribution plan

Plan description

The {CSSDTF) members of the District may voluntarily contribute to the Voluntary
Investment Program {401{k) Plan), an Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k} defined
contribution plan administered by PERA. Plan participation is voluntary, and contributions
are separate from others made to PERA. Title 24, Article 51, Part 14 of the CRS, as
amended, assigns the authority to establish the 401(k) Plan provisions to the State
Legislature,

Funding policy

The 401(k) Plan is funded by voluntary member contributions of up to a maximum limit set
by the IRS ($17,500 in 2014). The contribution requirements for the District are
established under Title 24, Article 51, Section 1402 of the CRS, as amended. The 401(k)
Plan member contributions from the District for the year ended June 30, 2014 were
$62,430.
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Note K — Risk management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.
The District participates in the Colorade School Districts Self-Insurance Pool (the Pool).
The Pool’s objectives are to provide member school districts defined property and liability
coverages through self-insurance and excess insurance purchased from commercial
companies. The District pays an annual contribution to the Pool for its insurance
coverages. The District’s contribution for the year was $77,573. The District continues to
carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss, including workers’ compensation and
employee health and accident insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not
exceeded commercial insurance coverage or the deductible in any of the past three fiscal
years. There has been no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the prior year in
any of the major categories of risk.

Note L - Commitments and contingencies

Federal and state funding

The District receives revenues from various federal and state grant programs which are
subject to final review and approval by the grantor agencies. The amount, if any, of
expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at
this time although the District expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

TABOR Amendment

In November 1992, Colorado voters passed an amendment, commonly known as the
Taxpayer’s Bill of Rights {(TABOR), to the State Constitution (Article X, Section 20) which
limits the revenue raising and spending abilities of state and local governments. The limits
on property taxes, revenue, and “fiscal year spending” include allowable annual increases
tied to inflation and local growth in student enrollment. Fiscal year spending as defined by
the amendment excludes spending from certain revenue and financing sources such as
federal funds, gifts, property sales, fund transfers, damage awards, and fund reserves
(balances). The amendment requires voter approval for any increase in mill levy or tax
rates, new taxes, or creation of multi-year debt. Revenue earned in excess of the “spending
limit” must be refunded or approved to be retained by the District under specified voting
requirements by the entire electorate. In November 1998, the voters of the District
approved a ballot initiative permitting the District to retain, appropriate, and utilize, by
retention for reserve, carryover fund balance, or expenditure, the full proceeds and
revenues received from every source whatsoever, without limitation, in this fiscal year and
all subsequent fiscal years notwithstanding any limitation of Article X, Section 20 of the
Colorado Constitution. TABOR is complex and subject to judicial interpretation. The
District believes it is in compliance with the requirements of TABOR. However, the District
has made certain interpretations of TABOR'’s language in order to determine its compliance.
The District has reserved funds in the General Fund in the amount of $231,000 for the
elnergency reserve.
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Note L - Commitments and contingencies (Continued)

Budget law

Expenditures in the Pupil Activity Fund exceeded appropriations by $80,373 and may be in
violation of Colorado Local Government Budget Laws,

Note M - Joint venture

The District participates in the Northeast Colorado Board of Cooperative Educational
Services (BOCES). This joint venture does not meet the criteria for inclusion within the
reporting entity because the BOCES:

is financially independent and responsible for its own financing deficits and entitled
to its own surpluses,

has a separate governing board from that of the District,

has a separate management which is responsible for the day to day operations and
is accountable to the separate board,

governing board and management have the ability to significantly influence
operations by approving budgetary requests and adjustments, signing contracts,
hiring personnel, exercising control over facilities and determining the outcome or
disposition of matters affecting the recipients of services provided, and

has absolute authority over all funds and fiscal responsibility including budgetary
responsibility and reporting to state agencies and controls fiscal management.

The District has one member on the board. This board has final authority for all budgeting
and financing of the joint venture. Separate financial statements of the Northeast Colorado
Board of Educational Services are available by contacting their administrative office in
Haxtun, Colorado. For the year, the District’s financial contribution was $175,234,

Note N — Restatement of Beginning Net Position

The District adopted GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets arncd
Liabilities. This statement requires that debt issuance costs, except for any portion related
to prepaid insurance costs, to be recognized as an expense in the period incurred. Due to
this adoption, the District’s beginning net position in the governmental activities has been
restated in the current period as follows:

Net position at beginning of year, as originally reported $ 13,722,642
Unamortized debt issuance costs at beginning of year (84,3511}
Net position at beginning of year, as restated $ 13,638,291
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Required Supplementary Information

Budgetary comparison schedules are required to be presented for the General Fund and each
major Special Revenue Fund.

General Fund -~ The General Fund accounts for all transactions of the District not

required to be accounted for in other funds. This fund represents an accounting of the
District’s ordinary operations financed primarily from property and specific ownership
taxes and state aid. It is the most significant fund in relation to the District’s overall
operations.
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Revenues
Local sources
Intermediate sources
State sources
Federal sources

Total revenues
Expenditures
Instruction
Supporting services
Appropriated reserves

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing uses
Transfers out

Excess of revenues over

(under) expenditures and
other uses

Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 4,098,506 $ 4,098,506 $ 3,609,109 $ (489,397)
5,000 5,000 2,757 (2,243)
3,409,704 3,930,370 4,020,655 90,285
247,098 325,489 298,711 (26,778)
7,760,308 8,359,365 7,931,232 (428,133)
5,017,627 5,151,821 5,082,188 69,633
2,859,732 2,011,734 2,959,757 (48,023)
6,036,185 6,844,525 6,844,525
13,913,544 14,908,080 8,041,945 6,866,135
(6,153,236) (6,548,715) (110,713) 6,438,002
(495,600) (593,000) (448,518) 144,482
$ (6,648,836) & (7,141,715) (559,231} 8§ 6,582,484
6,844 525
$ 6,285,204
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Note A — Budgetary data

The District adheres to the following procedures in compliance with Colorado Revised
Statutes, establishing the budgetary data in the financial statements:

1.

Budgets are required by state law for all funds. Prior to May 31, the superintendent
of schools submits to the board of education a proposed budget for the fiscal year
commencing the following July 1. The budget includes proposed expenditures and
the means of financing them.

Public hearings are conducted by the board of education to obtain taxpayer
comments.

Prior to June 30, the budget is adopted by formal resolution.

Prior to January 31, the board of education submits its adopted annual budget to
the department of education.

Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the fund level. Authorization
to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any fund and
reallocation of budget line items within any department in the General Fund rests
with the superintendent of schools. Revisions that alter the total expenditures of
any fund must be approved by the board of education.

Budgets for all funds are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Budgeted amounts reported in the accompanying financial statements are as
originally adopted and as amended by the board of education throughout the year.
After budget approval, the District board of education may approve supplemental
apprepriations if an cccurrence, condition, or need exits which was not known at
the time the budget was adopted. Supplemental appropriations were made during
the year.

Appropriations lapse at year-end.
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Other Supplementary Information

Other supplementary information includes financial statements and schedules not required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, nor a part of the basic financial statements,
but are presented for purposes of additional analysis.
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Budgetary Comparison Schedules - General Fund

The General Fund accounts for all transactions of the District not required to be accounted for
in other funds, This fund represents an accounting of the District’s erdinary operations
financed primarily from property and specific ownership taxes and state aid. It is the most
significant fund in relation to the District’s overall operations. The schedules of revenues and
expenditures are included to provide a greater level of detail to the reader of the financial
statements.
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General Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Revenues

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Revenues
Local sources
Property taxes
Specific ownership taxes

Delinquent taxes and interest

Tuition

Earnings on investments
Pupil activities

Other local sources

Total local sources
Intermediate sources

State sources
Equalization

Hold harmless kindergarten

Vocational education
English language
Transportation

School counselor grant
READ Act

State grants to libraries
Services within the BOCES

Total state sources

Federal sources
Title I
Title II-A
Title 111
Title VI, Part B
Race to the top
Services within the BOCES

Total federal sources

Total revenues

Budgeted Amounts

Variarnce with
Final Budget

Favorable
Original Final Actual {(Unfavorable)
$ 3,456,486  $ 3,456,486 § 2,897,056 $ (559,430)
360,000 360,000 472,521 112,521
6,500 6,500 6,218 (282)
12,000 12,000 12,285 285
25,000 25,000 20,047 (4,953)
86,920 86,920 89,652 2,732
151,600 151,600 111,330 (40,270)
4,098,506 4,098,506 3,609,109 (489,397
5,000 5,000 2,757 (2,243)
3,044,385 3,496,979 3,545,993 49,014
45,600 45,600 46,749 1,149
42,000 42,000 39,837 (2,163)
42,000 42,000 43,199 1,199
72,000 72,000 88,166 16,166

21,000 21,000 -

14,533 14,533 -

3,000 3,000 -
163,719 193,258 218,178 24,920
3,409,704 3,930,370 4,020,655 90,285
170,989 229,352 235,377 6,025
37,130 38,784 32,413 (6,371}

19,299 19,252 19,252 -
12,498 (12,498}
5,923 5,924 1
19,680 19,680 5,745 (13,935)
247,098 325,489 298,711 (26,778)
$ 7,760,308 B 8,359,365 B 7,931,232 § (428,133)
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General Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Expenditures

¥or the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Expenditures
Instruction
Salaries
Employee benefits
Purchased services

Supplies and materials

Property
Other

Total instruction

Supporting services
Students
Salaries
Employee benefits
Purchased services

Supplies and materials

Other
Total students

Instructional staff
Salaries
Employee benefits
Purchased services

Supplies and materials

Property
Other

Total instructional staff

General administration

Salaries
Employee benefits
Purchased services

Supplies and materials

Property
Other

Total general administration

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

-56-

Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable]
3,263,516 $ 3,360,097 $ 3,207,764 $ 152,333
1,006,804 1,069,305 1,026,001 43,304
413,775 424,775 424 309 466
189,934 234,634 340,269 {105,635)
46,320 46,320 61,539 (15,219)
07,278 16,600 22,306 (5,706)
5,017,627 5,151,821 5,082,188 69,633
104,645 82,050 84,726 (2,676)
33,592 24,846 25,622 (776}
3,000 6,000 5,560 440
980 980 881 99
100 100 280 (180)
142,317 113,976 117,069 (3,093}
77,413 77,413 70,430 6,983
28,626 28,626 25,891 2,735
28,945 41,445 47,054 (5,609}
13,411 13,318 15,099 (1,781)
3,000 3,000 375 2,625
4,281 3,809 2,034 1,875
155,676 167,711 160,883 6,828
128,976 132,691 167,753 (35,062)
44,867 48,610 50,245 (1,635)
66,550 69,550 88,370 (18,820)
11,400 11,400 6,005 5,395
1,000 1,000 3,981 (2,981)
16,250 16,250 17,607 {1,357}
269,043 279,501 333,961 (54,460}



School administration
Salaries
Employee benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials
Property

Total school administration

Business services
Salaries
Employee benefits
Purchased services
Other

Total business services

Operations and maintenance
Salaries
Employee benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials
Property
Other

Total operations and
maintenance

Student transportation services
Salaries
Employee benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials
Property

Total student transportation
services

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget
Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
586,410 570,672 608,200 (37,528)
167,268 169,242 166,224 3,018

36,100 36,100 17,269 18,831
450 450 126 324

750 750 750
790,978 777,214 791,819 (14,605)

77,525 77,525 77,525 -

23,809 23,809 24,179 (370)
2,500 2,500 2,749 (249)
5,563 (5,563)

103,834 103,834 110,016 (6,182)
246,192 282,744 262,007 20,737
80,267 91,481 87,359 4,122
302,000 308,000 324,487 (16,487)
319,170 319,170 338,864 (19,694)
8,000 8,000 6,540 1,460
1,000 1,000 1,185 (185)
956,629 1,010,395 1,020,442 (10,047)
131,975 132,170 119,489 12,681
44 248 39,477 41,283 (1,800)
44,650 44,650 47,889 (3,239)
106,700 106,700 85,156 21,544
750 750 269 481
328,323 323,747 294,086 29,661
{Continued)
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General Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Expenditures
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Favorable
(Continued) Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
Ceniral support services
Salaries 52,920 52,920 52,920 -
Employee benefits 21,390 21,390 14,676 6,714
Purchased services 10,800 23,724 19,313 4411
Supplies and materials 5,000 2,500 1,100 1,400
Property 1,000 12,000 17,984 (5,984)
Total central support
services 91,110 112,534 105,993 6,541
Other support services
Salaries 10,000 10,000 12,683 (2,683)
Employee benefits 1,822 1,822 2,246 (424)
Purchased services 10,000 10,000 9,980 20
Supplies and materials 1,000 1,000
Total other support services 21,822 22,822 24,909 (2,087)
Non-instructional services
Supplies and materials 539 (539)
Community services
Supplies and materials 40 (40)
Total supporting services 2,859,732 2,911,734 2,959,757 (48,023)
Appropriated reserves 6,036,185 6,844,525 6,844,525
Total expenditures $ 13,913,544 ¥ 14,908,080 $ 8,041,945 $ 6,866,135
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Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Nonmajor Governmental Fund

The District reports the following nonmajor governmental fund:

Capital Projects Funds — These funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that
are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

= Capital Reserve Capital Projects Fund — This fund is a capital projects fund used to
account for and report financial reseurces that have been designated for capital outlays
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and other capital assets.
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YUMA SCHOOL DISTRICT-1

Capital Reserve Capital Projects Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Revenues
Earnings on investments

Expenditures

Capital outlay
Purchased services
Building improvements
Equipment
Vehicles
Technology

Debt service
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Appropriated reserves

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing scurces
Transfer in

Excess of revenues and other
{inancing sources over

(under) expenditures

Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable}
3 50 8% 50 % 18§ {32)
224,600 225,100 17,263 207,837
11,000 11,000 23,693 (12,693)
35,000 35,000 32,321 2,679
100,000 100,000 70,669 29,331
125,000 135,000 160,908 (25,908)
49,810 (49,810)
50 6,381 (6,331)
50 -
495,650 506,150 361,045 145,105
(495,600) (506,100) (361,027) 145,073
495,600 506,150 361,682 (144,468)
% - $ 50 655 b 605
140
s 795

-60-



Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Debt Service Fund

The District reports the following major debt service fund:

Debt Service Funds — These funds account for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of, general long-term debt principal and interest,

=  Bond Redemption Fund — This fund is a debt service fund used to account for the revenues

from a specific tax levy for the purpose of the repayment of debt principal, interest and
other fiscal charges.
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YUMA SCHOOL DISTRICT-1
Bond Redemption Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Revenues
Property taxes
Delinquent taxes and interest
Earnings on investments

Total revenues

Expenditures
Debt service
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Appropriated reserves

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over
{under) expenditures

Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorabie)
$ 786,100 $ 786,100 $ 703,410 3 (82,690}
1,302 1,302
59 59
786,100 786,100 704,771 (81,329]
455,000 455,000 510,000 (55,000)
331,100 331,100 199,469 131,631
1,031,544 1,036,885 1,036,885
1,817,644 1,822,985 709,469 1,113,516
$ (1,031,544) $ (1,036,885) (4,698) $ 1,032,187

1,036,885
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Budgetary Comparison Schedule — Enterprise Fund

The District reports the following nenmajor proprietary fund;

Enterprise Funds - These funds are used te account for operations that provide services that
are financed primarily by user charges, or activities where pericdic measurement of income is
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control or other purposes.

Food Service Fund - This fund is used to record financial transactions related to the
District’s food service operations.
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YUMA SCHOOL DISTRICT-1
Food Service Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
Operating revenues
Charges for services $ 65,439 ¥ 60,800 $ 56,184 3 (4,616)
Operating expenses
Salaries and benefits 170,726 180,526 176,389 5,137
Purchased services 9,350 9,350 9,773 (423)
Supplies and materials 164,686 164,686 168,064 (3,378)
Property 1,000 1,000 803 197
Depreciation 9,074 (9,074)
Appropriated reserves 120,692 79,920 79,920
Total operating expenses 466,454 435,482 363,103 72,379
Operating loss (401,015} (374,682) (306,919) 67,763
Nonoperating revenues
Federal aid
Nutrition reimbursements 255,000 255,000 242,681 (12,319)
Commodities 18,723 18,723 15,770 (2,953)
State aid 6,500 4,869 5,462 593
Earnings on investments 100 100 119 19
Total nonoperating revenues 280,323 278,692 264,032 (14,660)
Loss before transfers (120,692) (95,990) (42,887) 53,103
Transfers in 86,850 86,836 (14)
Change in net position $ (120,692) & (9,140) 43,949 $ 53,089
Net position at beginning of year 79,920
Net position at end of year b 123,869
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Budgetary Comparison Schedule ~ Fiduciary Fund

These funds focus on net position and changes in net position. The fiduciary fund category is
split into four classifications: pension trust funds, investment trust funds, private-purpose
trust funds and agency funds.

Agency funds - These funds are used to report resources held by the District in a purely
custodial capacity (assets equal liabilities). These funds typically involve only the receipt,
temporary investment, and remittance of fiduciary resources to individuals, private
organizations, or other governments.

*  Pupil Activity Agency Fund — This fund is an agency fund used to record transactions
related to school-sponsored pupil organizations and activities.
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YUMA SCHOOL DISTRICT-1
Pupil Activity Agency Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Additions
Fundraising and other events

Deductions
Pupil activity expenditures

Excess of additions over
(under) deductions

Due to student groups at
beginning of year

Due to student groups at
end of year

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Favorable
Original Final Actual {(Unfavorable}
$ 220,000 $ 137,858 $ 222448 B 84,590
220,000 137,858 218,231 (80,373)
$ - $ - 4217 8 4,217
137,858
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Single Audit Section

In July 1996, the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 (the Act) was signed into law. As a
result of the new Act, the Office of Management and Budget issued a revision to Circular A-133
titled Audits of States, Local Governments, and Nonprofit Organizations. This Circular was
finalized and released in June 1997. The following schedules and reports are included in the
District’s financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the Act.
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YUMA SCHOOL DISTRICT-1
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Pass-through

Federal Entity
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/ CFDA Identifying Federal
Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Education
Pass-through programs from:
Colorado Department of Education:
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 4010 $ 235,377
English Language Acquisition State Grants 84.365 4365 19,252
lmproving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 4367 32,413
Race to the Top 84.413 4413 5,924
Total U.3. Department of Education 292,966
Child Nutrition Cluster
U.S. Department of Agriculture:
Pass through pregrams from:
Colorado Department of Human Services:
National School Lunch Program 10.5585 4555 15,770
Pass through programs from:
Colorado Department of Education:
School Breakfast Program 10.553 4553 54,283
National School Lunch Program 10.555 4555 188,398
Total Child Nutrition Cluster 258,451
Total expenditures of federal awards $ 551,417

See accompanying Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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YUMA SCHOOL DISTRICT-1
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Note A — Basis of presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant
activity of Yuma School District-1 and is presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting for all funds except for the proprietary funds, which are presented on the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they become measurable and
available as net current assets. Grant and entitlement revenues are recognized to the
extent of related expenditures or when compliance with matching requirements are met. A
receivable is established when the related expenditures exceed revenue receipts and a
deferred revenue account is established when receipts exceed the related expenditures.
The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Nonprofit Organizations.
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in,
or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

Note B — Nonmonetary assistance

Federal nonmonetary assistance is reported in the schedule at the fair value of the items
received and disbursed during the year. The District received nonmonetary assistance for
the year as follows:

CFDA No. 10.555 National School Lunch Program N 15,770
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Board of Education
Yuma School District-1
Yuma, Colorado

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial andits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of Yuma School District’s {the District), as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated December 4, 2014.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstance for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Districts’ internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does net allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant defictency is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance,

Qur consideration of internal centrol was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses, However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reascnable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit,
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Gowvernment Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose,

Laner, Sgabe & rfeseciates, P. L.

Sterling, Colorado
December 4, 2014
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for
Each Major Program and on Internal Control over
Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133

Board of Education
Yuma School District-1
Yuma, Colorado

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Yuma School District-1's (the District’s) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of the District’s major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2014. The District’s major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District’s major
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
the District’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion en compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
District’s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2014.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the District’s internal control
over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on
each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than
a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies, We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
wealnesses. However, material wealknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the

requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Laner, Spabe & sssciates, P. L.

Sterling, Colorado
December 4, 2014
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YUMA SCHOOL DISTRICT-1
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Summary of auditors’ results

1.

8.

9.

The auditors’ report expresses an unmodified opinion on the basic financial statements of
the Yuma School District-1 (the District).

No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the basic financial statements are
reported in the Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statement Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

No instances of noncompliance material to the basic financial statements of the District
were disclosed during the audit.

No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditers’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Contrel over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133.

The auditors’ report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the District
expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

The audit did not disclose any findings relative to the major federal award preograms of the
District.

The programs tested as major were:

Child Nutrition Cluster CFDA Nos. 10.553 and 10.555
English Language Acquisition State Grants CFDA No. 84.365

The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $300,000.

The District did not qualify as a low-risk auditee.

Findings — Financial statement audit

We noted no findings that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Findings and Questioned Costs

We noted no findings or questioned costs that are required to be reperted in accordance with
OMB Circular A-133.
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Colorado Department of Education
Supplementary Schedule

Auditors’ integrity report — This fiscal-year report is required by the Colorado Department of
Education to maintain statewide consistency in financial reporting. This report is also used to
gather financial data that could affect future state funding.
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Auditors’ Integrity Report

Board of Education
Yuma School District-1
Yuma, Colorado

We have audited the financial statements of the Yuma School District-1 (the District} as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2014, and our report thereon dated December 4, 2014, which
expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements, appears on pages 1-3. Our
audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The Auditors’ Integrity Report is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is
not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Lawen, Spatie & Aeociates, P. L,

Sterling, Colorado
December 4, 2014

-79-



MY LEILL LatiZ4an

“wodal siyy uo sspugleq pung Fuluuidag pue Bulpua Jnok Yiog 01Ul pappe s ualsnipe pouadioud nok Jo JUNOLLE 343 (DgE9 139Ys aouejed) puny Aue ui waunsnipe pouad rolid g 3ABY NOA 1.

TN
SEOTRL LETRIT L 8SFLEL SE|ol
o 0 Q ‘ ] SUCNEPUND, 58
0 o 0 ] . ‘ o o PUR JUALBULIILPE ASYD 6L
J7icxaan ‘ e wmw.m._.n = ‘ BYFETT gse8'eE] o pung DUy b_>_wu,¢ 1dng i
4] = i D = [«] ’ a puny .G..vw«. 174
¢ m B ] m ’ ’ i pUNg 1sr1] asoding MEag 94
¢ o ] 0 ‘ spun fousdy pue 1snL A0 oL
. Aeidnpiy
§98'E7L 098 LS0'20% ozEeL i qear
0 0 Q o ’ $puUny 22w |BLUIAIL) JBYIOQ  6O-59°09
a ] ’ ) o\ ¢ ’ a EEN _uc_i.b. \:uf PRICRYAHY LR EI
[} B h [ n ’ \o ’ = T ‘EEE uwt&ﬁ:muo:ﬁ s
gseszL T ZOUESE 160°208 0z6'ss i , ) ) puny dmas pons  1g
. ‘ \,.._Ew..cno.a
uzTEIEE ESHTLLG SB16vsE SvE 18 oL
‘ -4 m\qm. 198 EHGW aFt pun4 239004 R1dED 335y jEndeD £
.w = ’ 0 ‘ ST ] . 0 N pung Suipiing jenads oF
] 1} ‘ [13 o ’ ‘ pung Suipting IF
q ‘ 0 n ’ 1) ’ quumEmD .oopean( SNCA-UON GE
LBUTED'L 6IF'60L 144P0L 938°9E0°1 pund yandwapey puog It
Q i) bl i} pung poneUodsue L 14
m : ‘ n_ ) . 0 o un_.:u.\,D _051_ HA cmtmw_avc,"z AzQing e
0 . ) : 0 ‘ 1 W ’ puny Inuasay JRIRsds _0.3_64 Jidng [34
[} : a B 1) a pung s1Beg wwma._:m.uuu.wcm_“mo 1400 w©
o . = a T m = a , |uc3 anusady 3adg uaa‘mma 1€nde] ¥4
v 0 T e Ly ¢ “pung arusnay jezeds  62-97°02
[ T ) ) ’ .o ’ 0 ’ _u:m_w _.oo_.um BuEY] —‘,.
wersars | 610 T s stsvas 1@ -gns
ZiL'9l . ) S806LL z = €9T°LLL w08y pung wesdv.g |00YI53Y GPRIDISD El
[\ . 0 ’ ’ 0 bl N:E |EL2U30 J6 pund-qns 1A Hay a0
mwm,wmn.w om.mdnm‘h s YEF LT nmo,owﬂm.w Pung jRun oL
Ful E ‘ - [+ p 1BIUBIIUIRA0G
a3ueleg pund Bulpul («0889) S350 J3L30 | $32a005 LAYl (x0889) IPY
fpy 424 J01d B 66£9-00L9 7B sa4n)puadx] 1EY0 | 6660-1000 I 73 5aNU3AIY 1230, 666S - 0001

134 Joud g asueleg pund Sag - JaquinN®g 3dA) pung

pung Aq a3UEjeg pund % s2n)puadxg ‘sanuasay
53208/321351(] 100425 0pEIDI0)
FLI~ELOT Je3) 1edsly
L VINNA - 00Z£ 323510
yoday Qu3aju| sloupny
| a8y u 10 JUSLIHEGsJ OPRI0]




